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Clerk, U.S. District Court, ILCD

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE CENTRAL DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS

URBANA DIVISION
KIMBERLY A. DEAN, )
on behalf of herself and a class, )
Plaintiff, §
Vs, ) - A
WORLD FINANCE CORPORATION OF ILLINOIS, % @ 67 - (Q 05 (ﬁ
Defendant. g
COMPLAINT — CLASS ACTION FER - 9 2009
MATTERS COMMON TO MULTIPLE CLAIMS CL&F@I} OF THE ¢ C}UF\?T
INTRODUCTION CENTRAL Qiﬁgﬂc ﬁ?ws;
1. Plaintiff brings this action to secure redress from unlawful credit and

collection practices engaged in by World Finance Corporation of Illinois (“WFC”). Plaintiff
alleges violation of the Truth in Lending Act, 15 U.S.C. §1601 et seq. (“TILA”), and Federal
Reserve Board Regulation Z, 12 C.F.R. part 226, and Illinois law.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

2. This Court has jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. §§1331, 1337, and 1367 and
15 U.S.C. §1640.
3. Venue in this District is proper because defendant has numerous offices

within the District at which the activities complained of occurred.

~ PARTIES
4. Plaintiff Kimberly A. Dean is an individual who resides in the Central
District of Illinois.
3. Defendant WFC is an Illinois corporation. Its registered agent and office

is CT Corporation System, 208 S. LaSalle St., Suite 814, Chicago, IL. 60604.
6. Defendant WFC is engaged in the consumer loan business. It operates

approximately 36 loan offices in the Central and Southern Districts of Illinois, including offices
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at 111 N. Broadway Avenue, Urbana, IL, 45 N. Vermillion Stréet, Danville, IL, and 106 & 108
East Congress Avenue, Rantoul, IL.

7. Defendant WFC makes more than 26 extensions of consumer credit per
year and is a “creditor” as defined in TILA and Regulation Z.

8. Defendant WFC holds a license under the Illinois Consumer Installment
Loan Act, 205 ILCS 670/1 et seq.

FACTS

0. On July 16, 2008, plaintiff obtained a loan from defendant WFC for
personal, family or household purposes.

10.  The loan documentation includes a combination loan agreement / Truth in
Lending disclosure statement (Exhibit A) and a wage assignment (Exhibit B).

11. Exhibit A is a standard, computer-printed form used in hundreds or

thousands of transactions.

12.  Exhibit A is filled out in a standardized manner.

13.  Exhibit B is a standard, computer-printed form used in hundreds or
thousands of transactions.

14.  Exhibit B is filled out in a standardized manner.

15.  The extension of credit to plaintiff was secured.

16.  Defendant WFC regularly obtains security interests.

17.  Exhibit A does not disclose within the federal disclosures “a statement
that a security interest has been taken in . . .(B) property not purchased as part of the credit
transaction identified by item or type.” 15 U.S.C. §1638(a)(9). Instead it says “PP see Exhibit
A

18.  On information and belief, defendant WFC regularly fills out its
disclosures in that manner.

19.  Exhibit A does state within the federal disclosures that it is secured by “a



revocable assignment of your wages”.

20.  This statement is part of the computer-generated form.

21. The wage assignment, Exhibit B, is void because the words “wage
assignment” are not in bold type at least 1/4 inch in height at the top of the documents and one
inch above or below the signature line.

22.  The Illinois Wage Assignment Act, 740 ILCS 170/.01 et seq. (“IWAA™),
provides, at 740 ILCS 170/1, as follows:

Sec. 1. No assignment of wages earned or to be earned is valid unless

(1) Made in a written instrument (a) signed by the wage-earner in person
and (b) bearing the date of its execution, the social security number of the
wage-earner, the name of the employer of the wage-earner at the time of its
execution, the amount of the money loaned or the price of the articles sold or
other consideration given, the rate of interest or time-price differential, if

any, to be paid, and the date when such payments are due;

(2) Given to secure an existing debt of the wage-earner or one contracted
by the wage-earner simultaneously with its execution;

(3) An exact copy thereof is furnished to the wage-earner at the time the
assignment is executed;

(4) The words “Wage Assignment” are printed or written in bold face
letters of not less than 1/4 inch in height at the head of the wage assignment
and also one inch above or below the line where the wage-earner signs that
assignment;

(5) Written as a separate instrument complete in itself and not a part of
any conditional sales contract or any other instrument.

The requirement of the social security number of the wage-earner imposed
by this Act applies only as to wage assignments made after January 1, 1966.

23. On or about December 9, 2008, defendant WFC sent plaintiff the “notice
of intent to assign wages” attached as Exhibit C.

24, Exhibit C sought to enforce Exhibit B.

25. Defendant WFC regularly enforces wage assignments in the form

represented by Exhibit B.



COUNT I —TRUTH IN LENDING ACT

26. Kimberly Dean incorporates paragraphs 1-25.

27. Defendant WFC violated the Truth in Lending Act, 15 U.S.C. §1638, and
Federal Reserve Regulation Z, 12 C.F.R. §226.18, in that its security interest disclosure does not
comply with the requirements of TILA, both because the personal property security was not
disclosed and because a wage assignment was disclosed when no valid wage assignment existed.

CLASS ALLEGATIONS

28.  Kimberly Dean brings this claim on behalf of 2 classes, which may be
coterminous, pursuant to Fed.R.Civ.P. 23(a) and 23(b)(3).

29.  Class A consists of (a) all individuals (b) who entered into loans with
defendant WFC (c) on or after a date one year prior to the filing of this action and on or before a
date 20 days after the filing of this action (d) whose Truth in Lending statements referred to an
exhibit or other document to describe a security interest in personal property.

30.  Class B consists of (a) all individuals (b) who entered into loans with
defendant WFC (c) on or after a date one year prior to the filing of this action and on or before a
date 20 days after the filing of this action (d) whose Truth in Lending statements referred to a
wage assignment (e) when the wage assignment document did not contain the words “wage
assignment” in bold letters at least 1/4 inch in height at the top of the wage assignment document
or within one inch above or below the signature line.

31. Each class is so numerous that joinder of all members is not practicable.

32. On information and belief, there are more than 40 individuals who entered
into loans with defendant WFC on or after a date one year prior to the filing of this action and on
or before a date 20 days after the filing of this action, whose Truth in Lending statements
referred to an exhibit or other document to describe a security interest in personal property.

33. On information and belief, there are more than 40 individuals who

entered into loans with defendant WFC on or after a date one year prior to the filing of this



action and on or before a date 20 days after the filing of this action, whose Truth in Lending
statements referred to a wage assignment, when the wage assignment document did not contain
the words “wage assignment” in bold letters at least 1/4 inch in height at the top of the wage
assignment document or within one inch above or below the signature line.

34. There are questions of law and fact common to the class members, which
common questions predominate over any questions relating to individual class members. The
predominant common questions are:

| a. whether defendant TILA disclosures are standardized,
b. whether the disclosure of the personal property security interest
conforms to the requirements of TIL A and Regulation Z and
C. whether defendant violated TILA and Regulation Z by disclosing a
security interest in a wage assignment when no valid wage
assignment was taken.

35.  Kimberly Dean claim is typical of the claims of the class members. All
are based on the same factual and legal theories.

36.  Kimberly Dean will fairly and adequately represent the class members.
Kimberly Dean has retained counsel experienced in class actions and consumer credit litigation.

37. A class action is superior for the fair and efficient adjudication of this
matter, in that:

a. Individual actions are not economically feasible.
b. Members of the class are likely to be unaware of their rights;

WHEREFORE, the Court should enter judgment in favor of Kimberly Dean and
the class members and against defendant WFC for:

(D Statutory damages;
(2) Attorney fees, litigation expenses and costs of suit;

3) Such other and further relief as the Court deems proper.



COUNT II - UNENFORCEABLE L.OAN

38.  Kimberly Dean incorporates paragraphs 1-25.
39. Section 16 of the Consumer Instalment Loan Act (“CILA”) provides:
§ 205 ILCS 670/16. Disclosure of Terms of Contract

Sec. 16. Disclosure of Terms of Contract. In any loan transaction under
this Act, the licensee must disclose the following items to the obligor of the
loan before the transaction is consummated:

(a) The amount and date of the loan contract;
(b) The amount of the loan using the term “amount financed”;

(¢) Any deduction from the amount financed or payment made by the
obligor for insurance and the type of insurance for which each
deduction or payment was made;

(d) Any additional deduction from the loan or payment made by the
obligor in connection with obtaining the loan;

(e) The date on which the finance charge begins to accrue if different
from the date of the transaction;

(f) The total amount of the loan charge with a description of each
amount included using the term “finance charge”;

(g) The finance charge expressed as an annual percentage rate using
the term “annual percentage rate”.

“Annual percentage rate” means the nominal annual percentage rate
of finance charge determined in accordance with the actuarial method
of computation with an accuracy at least to the nearest 1/4 of 1%; or
at the option of the licensee by application of the United States rule so
that it may be disclosed with an accuracy at least to the nearest 1/4 of
1%:;

(h) The number, amount and due dates or periods of payments
scheduled to repay the loan and the sum of such payments using the
term “total of payments”; .

(k) A description or identification of the type of any security interest
held or to be retained or acquired by the licensee in connection with
the loan and a clear identification of the property to which the
security interest relates. If after-acquired property will be subject to
the security interest, or if other or future indebtedness is or may be
secured by any such property, this fact shall be clearly set forth in
conjunction with the description or identification of the type of
security interest held, retained or acquired;. ..
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At the time disclosures are made, the licensee shall deliver to the obligor a
duplicate of the instrument or statement by which the required disclosures
are made and on which the licensee and obligor are identified and their
addresses stated. All of the disclosures shall be made clearly, conspicuously
and in meaningful sequence and made together on either:

(i) the note or other instrument evidencing the obligation. Where a
creditor elects to combine disclosures with the contract, security
agreement, and evidence of a transaction in a single document, the
disclosures required under Section 16 [205 ILCS 670/16] shall be
made on the face of the document, on the reverse side, or on both
sides, provided that the amount of the finance charge and the annual
percentage rate shall appear on the face of the document, and, if the
reverse side is used, the printing on both sides of the document shall
be equally clear and conspicuous, both sides shall contain the
statement, “NOTICE: See other side for important information”, and
the place for the obligor signature shall be provided following the full
content of the document; or

(ii) One side of a separate statement which identifies the transaction.

The amount of the finance charge shall be determined as the sum of all
charges, payable directly or indirectly by the obligor and imposed directly or
indirectly by the licensee as an incident to or as a condition to the extension
of credit, whether paid or payable by the obligor, any other person on behalf
of the obligor, to the licensee or to a third party, including any of the
following types of charges:

(1) Interest, time price differential, and any amount payable under a
discount or other system of additional charges.

(2) Service, transaction, activity, or carrying charge.

(3) Loan fee, points, finder fee, or similar charge. ce
A licensee who complies with the federal Truth in Lending Act /15 U.S.C. §
1601 et seq.], amendments thereto, and any regulations issued or which may
be issued thereunder, shall be deemed to be in compliance with the
provisions of this Section, except with respect to the disclosure in paragraph
(m), which may be set forth in any manner.
40.  Defendant WFC failed to make the required disclosures prior to the

consummation of the transaction, in that the personal property security was not disclosed and

because a wage assignment was disclosed when no valid wage assignment existed.



41.  Section 20.7 of the Consumer Installment Loan Act provides:
§ 205 ILCS 670/20.7. Civil action

Sec. 20.7. Civil action. A claim of violation of this Act may be asserted in a
civil action.

CLASS ALLEGATIONS

42, Kimberly Dean brings this claim on behalf of 2 classes, which may be
coterminous, pursuant to Fed.R.Civ.P. 23(a) and 23(b)(3).

43, Class A consists of (a) all individuals (b) who entered into loans with
defendant WFC (c) that are outstanding on WFC books (d) whose Truth in Lending statements
referred to an exhibit or other document to describe a security interest in personal property.

44, Class B consists of (a) all individuals (b) who entered into loans with
defendant WFC (c) that are outstanding on WFC books (d) whose Truth in Lending statements
referred to a wage assignment (e) when the wage assignment document did not contain the
words “wage assignment” in bold letters at least 1/4 inch in height at the top of the wage
assignment document or within one inch above or below the signature line.

45.  Each class is so numerous that joinder of all members is not practicable.

46. On information and belief, there are more than 40 individuals who
entered into loans with defendant WFC that are outstanding on WFC books, whose Truth in
Lending statements referred to an exhibit or other document to describe a security interest in
personal property.

47. On information and belief, there are more than 40 individuals who
entered into loans with defendant WFC that are outstanding on WFC books, whose Truth in
Lending statements referred to a wage assignment, when the wage assignment document did not
contain the words “wage assignment” in bold letters at least 1/4 inch in height at the top of the
wage assignment document or within one inch above or below the signature line.

48.  There are questions of law and fact common to the class members, which

common questions predominate over any questions relating to individual class members. The
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predominant common questions are:

a. whether defendant TILA disclosures are standardized,

b. whether the disclosure of the personal property security interest
conforms to the requirements of TILA and Regulation Z and
CILA,

c. whether defendant violated TILA and Regulation Z and CILA by
disclosing a security interest in a wage assignment when no valid
wage assignment was taken, and

d. whether as a result the loans are unenforceable.

49.  Kimberly Dean claim is typical of the claims of the class members. All
are based on the same factual and legal theories.

50. Kimberly Dean will fairly and adequately represent the class members.
Kimberly Dean has retained counsel experienced in class actions and consumer credit litigation.

51. A class action is superior for the fair and efficient adjudication of this
matter, in that:

a. Individual actions are not economically feasible.

b. Members of the class are likely to be unaware of their rights;

WHEREFORE, the Court should enter judgment in favor of Kimberly Dean and
the class members and against defendant WFC for:
€)) A declaration that the subject loans are unenforceable;
(2)  An injunction against their enforcement;
(3) Attorney fees, litigation expenses and costs of suit;

“) Such other and further relief as the Court deems proper.



COUNT III —INTEREST ACT

52.  Kimberly Dean incorporates paragraphs 1-25.

53. The Illinois Interest Act, 815 ILCS 205/4, provides:

Sec. 4. General interest rate. (1) Except as otherwise provided in Section

4.05 [815 ILCS 205/4.05], in all written contracts it shall be lawful for the

parties to stipulate or agree that 9% per annum, or any less sum of interest,

shall be taken and paid upon every $ 100 of money loaned or in any manner
due and owing from any person to any other person or corporation in this
state, and after that rate for a greater or less sum, or for a longer or shorter
time, except as herein provided. . ..

It is lawful to receive or to contract to receive and collect interest and

charges as authorized by this Act and as authorized by the Consumer

Installment Loan Act [205 ILCS 670/1 et seq.] . . .

54. Section 16 of CILA requires, before a transaction is consummated, that
specified items of information be disclosed to the borrower.

55. Defendant WFC failed to make such disclosures, in that the personal
property security was not disclosed and because a wage assignment was disclosed when no valid
wage assignment existed.

56.  Asaresult, the charging of interest at rates in excess of 9% was not

authorized by the Interest Act.

CLASS ALLEGATIONS

57.  Kimberly Dean brings this claim on behalf of 2 classes, which may be
coterminous, pursuant to Fed.R.Civ.P. 23(a) and 23(b)(3).

58.  Class A consists of (a) all individuals (b) who entered into loans with
defendant WFC (c) that are either outstanding on defendant WFC books, or were paid within 2
years prior to the filing of this action,(d) whose Truth in Lending statements referred to an
exhibit or other document to describe a security interest in personal property.

59. Class B consists of (a) all individuals (b) who entered into loans with
defendant WFC (c) that are either outstanding on defendant WFC books, or were paid within 2

years prior to the filing of this action, (d) whose Truth in Lending statements referred to a wage
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assignment (e) when the wage assignment document did not contain the words “wage
assignment” in bold letters at least 1/4 inch in height at the top of the wage assignment document
or within one inch above or below the signature line.

60.  Each class is so numerous that joinder of all members is not practicable.

61. On information and belief, there are at least 40 individuals who entered
into loans with defendant WFC that are either outstanding on defendant WFC books, or were
paid within 2 years prior to the filing of this action, whose Truth in Lending statements referred
to an exhibit or other document to describe a security interest in personal property.

62. On information and belief, there are at least 40 individuals who entered
into loans with defendant WFC that are either outstanding on defendant WFC books, or were
paid within 2 years prior to the filing of this action, whose Truth in Lending statements referred
to a wage assignment, when the wage assignment document did not contain the words “wage
assignment” in bold letters at least 1/4 inch in height at the top of the wage assignment document
or within one inch above or below the signature line.

63.  There are questions of law and fact common to the class members, which
common questions predominate over any questions relating to individual class members. The
predominant common questions are:

a. whether defendant TILA disclosures are standardized,

b. whether the disclosure of the personal property security interest
conforms to the requirements of TILA and Regulation Z and
CILA,

c. whether defendant violated TILA and Regulation Z and CILA by
disclosing a security interest in a wage assignment when no valid
wage assignment was taken, and

d. whether as a result the loans violate the Interest Act.

64.  Kimberly Dean claim is typical of the claims of the class members. All
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are based on the same factual and legal theories.
65.  Kimberly Dean will fairly and adequately represent the class members.

Kimberly Dean has retained counsel experienced in class actions and consumer credit litigation.

66. A class action is superior for the fair and efficient adjudication of this
matter, in that:
a. Individual actions are not economically feasible.
b. Members of the class are likely to be unaware of their rights;

WHEREFORE, the Court should enter judgment in favor of Kimberly Dean and
the class members and against defendant WFC for:
(1) Statutory damages as provided in 815 ILCS 205/6a;
2) Attorney fees, litigation expenses and costs of suit;
(3) Such other and further relief as the Court deems proper.
COUNT IV —ILLINOIS WAGE ASSIGNMENT ACT
67.  Kimberly Dean incorporates paragraphs 1-25.
68.  The wage assignment form used by defendant does not comply with the
IWAA. |
69.  As aresult the wage assignments are void.
70.  The service of any notice or demand seeking to enforce such wage
assignment is unlawful and a violation of the IWAA.
71. 740 ILCS 170/4.3 provides:
Sec. 4.3. If any person wrongfully: (1) serves a notice on an employee or...(2)
causes a demand to be served for the wages of an employee. .. he shall be liable

to the employee and the employer for statutory damages in the sum of $500 and
all actual damages occasioned by such action including reasonable attorney fees.

CLASS ALLEGATIONS

72.  Kimberly Dean brings this claim on behalf of a class, pursuant to

Fed.R.Civ.P. 23(a) and 23(b)(3).
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73. The class consists of (a) all individuals (b) with respect to whom WFC
served a notice or demand (c) seeking to enforce a wage assignment in the form represented by
Exhibit B (c) on or after a date 2 years prior to the filing of this action.

74.  On information and belief, the class is so numerous that joinder of all
members is not practicable.

75. On information and belief, there are at least 40 members of the class.

76.  There are questions of law and fact common to the class members, which
common questions predominate over any questions relating to individual class members. The
predominant common questions are:

a. whether defendant wage assignment form fails to comply with the
requirements of the IWAA; and

b. whether as a result all demands and notices sent to enforce such
assignments unlawful.

77.  Kimberly Dean claim is typical of the claims of the class members. All
are based on the same factual and legal theories.

78.  Kimberly Dean will fairly and adequately represent the class members.

Kimberly Dean has retained counsel experienced in class actions and consumer credit litigation.

79.  Aclassaction is superior for the fair and efficient adjudication of this matter,
in that:
a. Individual actions are not economically feasible.
b. Members of the class are likely to be unaware of their rights;
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WHEREFORE, the Court should enter judgment in favor of Kimberly Dean and the
class members and against defendant WFC for:
() Statutory damages as provided in 740 ILCS 170/4.3;
(2) Attorney fees, litigation expenses and costs of suit;

(3) Such other and further relief as the Court deems proper.

g
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Daniel A. Edelman
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James O, Latturner

EDELMAN, COMBS, LATTURNER
& GOODWIN, LLC

120 S. LaSalle Street, 18th Floor

Chicago, Illinois 60603

(312) 739-4200

(312) 419-0379 (FAX)
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NOTICE OF LIEN AND ASSIGNMENT

Please be advised that we claim a lien upon any recovery herein for 1/3 or such
amount as a court awards. All rights relating to attorney fees have been assigned to counsel.

o

Daniel A. Edelman

Daniel A. Edelman

EDELMAN, COMBS, LATTURNER
& GOODWIN, LLC

120 S. LaSalle Street, 18th Floor

Chicago, Illinois 60603

(312) 739-4200

(312) 419-0379 (FAX)
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